

We provide this Regulation Best Interest Disclosure (the Reg BI Disclosure) to our retail customers to inform them about the services we offer and our relationship with them. This Reg BI Disclosure addresses the scope and terms of our relationship with you, the capacity in which we are acting, the type and scope of our services, any material limitations on our services, the fees and costs associated with your holdings, accounts, and transactions, and the conflicts of interest that exist for us and our financial professionals as it relates to the brokerage business of Peak Brokerage Services, LLC (referred to as "we," "us," or "PBS"). Additional information about PBS and its financial professionals is available on FINRA's website at http://brokercheck.finra.org.

Contents

ITEM 1 INTRODUCTION	2
Investment Adviser Capacity	3
ITEM 2 COMMISSIONS, FEES AND OTHER TYPES OF SALES COMPENSATION Commissions and Sales Charges	
Markups – Principal or Dealer Transactions	3
ITEM 3 THIRD PARTY COMPENSATION	4
Third Party Compensation Shared by PBS and Financial Professionals - Trail Compensation	
Concessions and Mutual Fund Finder's Fee	
Life Insurance	
Non-Cash Compensation	4
Non-Sweep Money Market Mutual Funds	4
Revenue Sharing Payments	5
Reimbursement for Shareholder Materials	5
ITEM 4 PRODUCT COSTS AND RELATED CONFLICTS ITEM 5 CUSTOMER REFERRALS, OTHER COMPENSATION AND OTHER CONFLICTS Payment for Referrals	7
Margin	7
Rollovers	7
Account Maintenance Fees	7
Account Transfer Fees	7
Wire Transfer Fees	7
Limitations on Investment Recommendations	7
ITEM 6 FINANCIAL PROFESSIONAL COMPENSATION, FEES AND RELATED CONFLICTS Cash Compensation	
Other Benefits	8
Fees Charged to Financial Professionals	8
Recruitment Compensation and Operational Assistance	8
Financial Professional's Outside Business Activities	9
Compensation for Other Services	9
ITEM 7 OTHER FINANCIAL INDUSTRY AFFILIATIONS	9



ITEM 1 INTRODUCTION

Peak Brokerage Services, LLC ("PBS") a broker-dealer registered with and a member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA). PBS's affiliate, Blackridge Asset Management, LLC ("BAM"), is a registered investment adviser with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). In addition, PBS, through its affiliate Top Advisors Group ("TAG"), is qualified to sell insurance products in multiple states. As a broker- dealer, PBS transacts business in various types of securities, including mutual funds, exchange-traded funds (ETFs), stocks, bonds, options, private and public partnerships, variable annuities, real estate investment trusts (REITs) and other investment products. We offer a variety of account types, including non-qualified (taxable), retirement (IRAs) and education (e.g. college savings plan) accounts. We make available brokerage accounts, held with our clearing firm and custodian Raymond James & Associates, as well as the ability to hold investments such as mutual funds, variable insurance or private placement products, directly with the issuer of the security or their affiliate (sometimes referred to as direct accounts). Our broker-dealer does not take custody of client assets.

PBS maintains a network of individuals, referred to as "financial professionals", who offer brokerage services, investment advisory services, or both, depending on their licenses. Some of PBS's financial professionals are investment adviser representatives (IARs) of BAM. PBS sometimes refers to these specific financial professionals as "financial advisors" or "advisors." PBS's financial professionals are independent contractors. PBS financial professionals are dispersed throughout the U.S. and often market services under their own business name.

Although most financial professionals offer both brokerage and investment advisory services, some only offer brokerage services and others only offer investment advisory services. When you are discussing services with a financial professional, you should ask what capacity the financial professionals are acting as or will be acting –as a broker-dealer registered representative and/or an advisory IAR – when providing services to you. This disclosure discusses important information regarding financial professionals who act as registered representatives of PBS's broker-dealer. For more information about BAM and the services financial professionals provide when they act as IARs, please see BAM's Form ADV disclosure brochures available on www.adviserinfo.sec.gov. For additional information on which type of investment account is right for you, please see PBS's Form CRS (Customer Relationship Summary) that is on our website www.peakbrokerageservices.com.

Depending on your needs and your investment objectives, your financial professional may assist you with brokerage services, investment advisory services, or both where appropriate. Brokerage and investment advisory services and fees differ, and it is important for you to understand these differences, including their costs, the services that may be provided, and the rules that govern them. Free and simple tools are available for you to research firms and financial professionals at <u>www.investor.gov/CRS</u>, which also provides educational materials about broker-dealers, investment advisers, and investing.

Our financial professionals do not make investment decisions for you or manage your brokerage account on a discretionary basis. Because our financial professionals do not have discretionary investment authority in this capacity, we cannot buy or sell investments in your brokerage account without first obtaining your consent. Our financial professionals may recommend investments to you, but you are responsible for making the decision whether to purchase or sell investments, and we will only purchase or sell investments when specifically directed by you. Our financial professionals are available to assist you and may

periodically review your account(s) to offer subsequent recommendations however, our financial professionals do not monitor your account after a securities transaction is affected for you, including those investments they recommend for you.

Like all financial services providers, PBS and its financial professionals have conflicts of interest. PBS and its financial professionals are compensated directly by customers and indirectly from the investments made by customers. When customers pay the broker dealer, we typically get paid an upfront commission or sales load at the time of the transaction and in some cases a deferred sales charge. If we are paid an upfront commission, it means that we are paid more the more transactions a customer makes. When we are paid indirectly from the investments made by customers, we receive ongoing compensation, typically called a "trail" payment, for as long as a customer holds an investment. In addition, we receive compensation from the sponsors of some of the investment products that customers purchase through us. The amount we receive varies depending on the particular type of investment a customer makes. The compensation described in this disclosure represents the maximum gain or profit we receive on an investment before subtraction of our expenses.

When we act in our capacity as a broker-dealer, we are subject to the Securities Act of 1933, the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the rules of self-regulatory organizations, such as the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, Inc. (FINRA), and applicable state laws. Pursuant to the SEC's Regulation Best Interest, we must act in your best interest, and we owe you a duty of care and loyalty. This means we must avoid conflicts of interest or, at a minimum, disclose them to you.



Please also note that not all the conflicts described in this disclosure apply to a particular financial professional, his/her services or all the products we sell. The types and amounts of compensation we receive change overtime. You should ask your financial professional if you have any questions about compensation, costs, fees, or conflicts of interest.

Investment Adviser Capacity

If we are acting as an investment adviser, we provide investment advice to you for a fee, including investment advice with respect to particular investments and other investment advisory programs. We typically place trades for our clients through our broker dealer affiliate, which in turn introduces accounts and transactions to its clearing firm and custodian, Raymond James & Associates. However, we sometimes designate Schwab, TD Ameritrade or other alternative clearing and custody companies. Your assets are held with those custodial firms, and not by us. Unlike a broker-dealer, we cannot execute securities transactions. However, with your authorization, we can direct the broker-dealer holding your account to place trades for your account.

When we act in our capacity as an investment adviser, we will do so pursuant to a written agreement with you that sets forth the investment advisory relationship and our obligations to you. When we provide you investment advice, we are acting in a fiduciary capacity under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940. We are subject to a fiduciary duty requiring that we act and provide investment advice in our clients' best interest. We also are required to provide full and fair disclosure of material facts associated with our services and investment advice. We must act to avoid conflicts of interest or disclose these conflicts to our clients. More information about our investment advisory services, fees and costs, and conflicts of interest is provided in our Form ADV, Part 2A brochure, which is available at adviserinfo.sec.gov. More information about the background and activities of your financial professional is provided in Form ADV Part 2B, which is available from your financial professional.

ITEM 2 COMMISSIONS, FEES AND OTHER TYPES OF SALES COMPENSATION

Commissions and Sales Charges

PBS receives upfront commissions when it executes transactions that result in the purchase or sale of a security. A commission, which also may be called a sales load, sales charge, or placement fee, is typically paid at the time of the sale and can reduce the amount available to invest or can be charged directly against an investment. Commissions are often based on the amount of assets invested. PBS receives the sales charge or commission and shares it with your financial professional. In some cases, a portion of the sales charge or commission security rather than a lower commission security. The maximum and typical commissions for common investment products are listed below. For more information about other commissions that apply to a particular transaction, please refer to the applicable investment's prospectus or other offering document.

Equities and Other Exchange Traded Securities. The maximum commission charged by PBS in an agency capacity on an exchange-traded security transaction, such as an equity, option, ETF, exchange traded note (ETN) or closed-end fund (CEF), is 5% of the transaction amount. The commission amount may decrease as the size of the transaction amount increases. In addition, the financial professional can decide to discount the commission amount to a minimum of \$25 per transaction (plus \$0.015 per share).

- Mutual Funds and 529s. The maximum commission or sales charge permitted under applicable rules is 8.5%, although the maximum is typically 5.75%.
- Annuities. The maximum upfront commission paid for new sales of annuities is typically 6%, but varies depending on the time purchased, and type of annuity, such as fixed, fixed index, traditional and investment-only variable annuities.
- Alternative Investments. For alternative investment products, such as hedge funds, private equity funds, non- traded), real estate private placements, or real estate investment trusts (REITs), the upfront sales load is as high as 7%.
- Unit Investment Trusts (UITs). The maximum upfront sales charge paid typically ranges from 1.85% to 3.95% and can depend on the length of the term of the UIT.

Markups – Principal or Dealer Transactions

PBS does not transact any security transactions in a principal capacity. For example, PBS does not hold securities in "inventory" to sell to you directly. Rather, PBS acts as your agent to buy or sell the security from a third party. These transactions are also known as "dealer transactions." Therefore, there are no markups or markdowns made by PBS on dealer transactions.



ITEM 3 THIRD PARTY COMPENSATION

PBS and financial professionals receive compensation from investment product sponsors and other third parties in connection with investments that PBS customers make in securities such as mutual funds, annuities, and alternative investments. Some types of third-party compensation are received by PBS and shared with financial professionals, and other types are retained only by PBS. For more information about the third-party compensation PBS receives, the investment product sponsors and other third parties that pay PBS the compensation, and related conflicts of interest, please see the specific investment disclosures.

Third Party Compensation Shared by PBS and Financial Professionals - Trail Compensation

PBS and its financial professionals receive ongoing compensation from certain investment products such as mutual funds, annuities, and alternative investments. This compensation (commonly known as trails or Rule 12b-1 fees) is typically paid from the assets of the investment product under a distribution or servicing arrangement with the investment sponsor and is calculated as an annual percentage of assets invested by PBS customers. The more assets you invest in the product, the more we will be paid in these fees. Therefore, we have an incentive to encourage you to increase the size of your investment. The number of trails received varies from product to product. This creates an incentive to recommend a product that pays a higher trail rather than a lower trail. We also have an incentive to recommend a product that pays trails (regardless of amount) rather than products that do not pay trails. For more information about trail compensation received with respect to a particular investment, please refer to the prospectus or offering document for the investment.

- Mutual Funds and 529s. The ongoing payment depends on the class of shares but is typically between 0.25% and 1% of assets annually.
- Annuities. PBS receives a trail payment from an annuity issuer for the promotion, sale and servicing of a policy. The amount and timing of trail
 payments vary depending on the agreement between PBS and the issuer, and the type of policy purchased. The maximum trail payment for
 annuities is typically 1.5% and varies depending on the type of annuity.
- Alternative Investments. For alternative investment products, such as private funds, trail payments may be as high as 3% on an annual basis.

Concessions and Mutual Fund Finder's Fee

In certain cases, PBS and financial professionals receive compensation from a mutual fund sponsor in connection with transactions for which sales charges are waived or under other circumstances and as described in a fund's offering documents. This compensation is generally referred to as a finder's fee or concession and typically ranges between 0.25% and 1% of the transaction amount. PBS also receives concessions from investment sponsors for other types of investments. These concessions vary from product to product and are generally shared between PBS and the financial professional.

Life Insurance

PBS, or its affiliate TAG, may receive compensation from issuers of life insurance (universal, variable universal, whole life, and term) and other insurance contracts that are available to customers. The compensation includes commissions and trails and may include payments for administrative services that PBS provides and/or payments made in connection with PBS's marketing and sales-force education and training efforts. PBS and/or TAG receive commissions in the range of 4% to 140% of first-year commissionable premiums. PBS may also receive a trail payment in the range of 1% to 25% of subsequent premiums, if any. The amount of commission varies depending on the issuer, coverage, and the premium amount. Financial professionals typically are paid directly from the insurance carriers with PBS or TAG receiving a percentage of the commissions and trailing commissions the insurance company pays to PBS, TAG or select 3rd party marketing partners. PBS and its financial professionals also receive additional compensation from certain insurance companies when PBS's sales of the companies' products exceed premium thresholds specified in selling agreements with PBS or TAG.

Non-Cash Compensation

PBS, its parent company, PBS REPS, LLC and financial professionals receive non-cash compensation from investment sponsors that is often not in connection with any particular customer or investment. Compensation includes such items as gifts valued at less than \$100 annually, an occasional dinner or ticket to a sporting event, or reimbursement in connection with educational meetings, due diligence trips related to a particular investment, customer workshops or events, or marketing or advertising initiatives, including services for identifying prospective customers. Investment sponsors also pay, or reimburse PBS and/or its financial professionals, for the costs associated with education or training events that may be attended by PBS employees and financial professionals and for PBS sponsored conferences and events.

Non-Sweep Money Market Mutual Funds

As an introducing Broker/Dealer under FINRA PBS does not custody customer funds. Our clearing firm, Raymond James &



Associates does offer a variety of Money Market options that they may make additional income on your assets in these types of investment vehicles.

Revenue Sharing Payments

PBS and/or its parent company receives revenue sharing payments from investment sponsors who participate in PBS's sponsorship programs and/or sponsor PBS conferences. Investment sponsors make these payments to incentivize PBS to promote their products, and the sponsors receive preferential treatment as a result of the payment. Those preferences include supporting PBS's product marketing, education, and training efforts for financial professionals so that investment sponsors can communicate with financial professionals and employees and promote their products. The arrangements also allow the investment sponsor's products in certain cases to benefit from lower ticket charges that are typically paid by a financial professional and/or customer. These payments are typically calculated as a fixed fee, as an annual percentage of the amount of assets invested, as a percentage of annual new sales, or as a combination.

- *Mutual Funds.* PBS may receive compensation of up to 0.25% on an annual basis of customer assets invested with certain mutual fund families. PBS also receives flat annual payments at the discretion of certain fund sponsors as support for PBS's product marketing and the education and training efforts for financial professionals in connection with the sale of their products.
- Variable Annuities. PBS may receive compensation that is based on customer assets (up to 0.15% annually), based on sales of such products (up to 0.35% annually) or based on a formula that is a combination of a fixed fee, customer assets and/or product sales.
- Fixed Annuities. PBS may receive payments of up to 0.50% annually on sales or up to 0.25% annually on customer assets.
- Alternative Investments. For certain alternative investments, PBS receives a marketing allowance fee directly from the investment sponsor, and not as a portion of the upfront commission or trail. These fees can be paid on an annual basis of up to 1.00% of customer assets invested and up to 1.50% of sales in alternative investments, such as REITs, DST's, and private equity.

Investment sponsors pay PBS different amounts of revenue sharing and receive different levels of benefits for such payments. Because these fees can vary by fund and share class of a fund, PBS has an incentive to recommend a fund or share class that pays more in revenue sharing than a fund or share class that pays a lower amount. PBS generally does not share these revenue sharing payments with financial professionals.

Reimbursement for Shareholder Materials

PBS does not deliver mutual fund shareholder reports and proxies to you. These materials will come directly from the fund sponsor or our clearing firm Raymond James & Associates.

ITEM 4 PRODUCT COSTS AND RELATED CONFLICTS

Financial professionals provide recommendations with respect to a broad range of investment products, including stocks, bonds, ETFs, mutual funds, annuities and alternative investments. Each type of investment product carries unique risks, and many investment products charge fees and costs that are separate from and in addition to the commissions and fees that PBS and financial professionals receive. You can learn more about these risks and the fees and costs charged by an investment product by reviewing the investment product's prospectus, offering memorandum, or other disclosure documents.

Any investment or investment strategy involves the risk of loss, which you should be prepared to bear. Examples of risks you could face are:

- Interest Rate Risk: Fluctuations in interest rates generally cause investment values to fluctuate. For example, market values of bonds typically decline when interest rates rise, because the rising rate makes the existing bond yields less attractive.
- Market Risk: External factors independent of a security's particular underlying circumstances may impact its value. The value of a security, bond or mutual fund may drop in reaction to tangible and intangible events and conditions, such as a political or social event or an economic condition.
- Inflation Risk: Inflation means a dollar today buys more than a dollar next year. When inflation is present, your purchasing power typically decreases at the rate of inflation.
- Currency Risk: Overseas investments are subject to fluctuations in the value of the dollar against the currency of the investment's originating country.
- Reinvestment Risk: The risk that future proceeds from investments may be reinvested at a potentially lower rate of return is reinvestment risk.
- **Business risk:** Risks associated with a particular industry, or a specific company may impact the value of investments. For example, oildrilling companies typically have more business risk since they depend on finding oil and then refining it efficiently before they generate a profit.



- Liquidity risk: Liquidity means the ability to readily convert an investment into cash. Assets with many purchasers are generally more liquid. For example, Treasury Bills are highly liquid, while real estate properties are less so.
- Financial risk: A company with excessive borrowing or that takes significant business risks to generate profit is typically at a greater risk of financial difficulty or failure.

Given the wide range of our brokerage services, we do not have many material limitations on the type and scope of our services. For instance, we do not limit our investment offerings to specific asset classes, or investments with third-party arrangements such as revenue sharing payments or mutual fund shareholder servicing fees. In addition, we do not limit our investment offerings to a select group of issuers, nor do we offer any investments issued or sponsored by us or our affiliates.

We do not have any minimum account requirements, although some of the investments you can purchase through us have minimum investment requirements. Material limitations for advisory arrangements are provided in the applicable ADV 2A brochure.

Investment Limitations: While we offer a wide range of investments there are certain types of investments we do not offer. For instance, we do not offer all mutual funds from every mutual fund company, or every type of ETF. We also do not offer every share class of a mutual fund that may be available by prospectus. Similarly, we do not offer every type of insurance product or college savings plan. This means that our financial professionals are limited to recommending only those investments that we make available. This is a material limitation on the securities or investment strategies that our financial professionals may recommend to you.

Discounted Commissions: The wide range of brokerage services we and our financial professionals offer you as a full-service brokerage firm is reflected in our commission and fee structure. We are not a discount brokerage firm and do no offer similarly discounted brokerage commissions. This is a material limitation on our services.

Set out below is the typical range of expenses of the various investment products we sell. In most cases, these expenses are in addition to the commissions and fees that PBS receives for its brokerage services.

- ETFs. The expense ratios range from 0.05% to 1.0%, with an average expense ratio of around 0.44%.
- *Mutual Funds*. Expense ratios can vary based on the type of mutual fund purchased. The average expense ratio for actively managed funds is 0.5% to 1.0%, for passive index mutual funds the average is 0.2%.
- Annuities. The typical range of annual expenses associated with annuities is 0.60% to 5.00% dependent upon the combination of
 options selected by the investor including type of annuity (variable annuities have a mortality and expense fee whereas fixed index
 annuities do not), optional riders elected (living and/or death benefits) and investment options where applicable (subaccounts or models
 for variable annuities).
- Alternative Investments. The typical range of annual expenses, excluding any commissions or dealer manager fees, is 0.80% to 6.00% which may include management fees, acquisition fees, disposition fees, performance participation fees, organization and offering fees, acquired fund fees and expenses, or interest payments on borrowed funds.
- **UITs**. Typical annual operating expenses for UITs range from 0.20% to 4.00%. Equity UITs usually comprise the low end of the range while UITs whose trust consist of a basket of CEFs typically comprise the high end of the range.

Share Class and Fund Selection

PBS offers various share classes of mutual funds and 529s via direct application with the fund sponsor or within a brokerage account established through Raymond James & Associates. As an example, certain mutual fund share classes, often referred to as Class A shares, charge an upfront sales charge and an ongoing trail. For other mutual fund share classes, often titled Class C shares, there is no upfront sale charge paid, however, there is an ongoing trail payment and a contingent deferred sales charge to the investor if there is a redemption within a certain period of time after purchase. Depending on the length of the holding period for the mutual fund or 529, and other factors, one share class may be less expensive to the investor than another, and PBS and the financial professional may earn more or less in compensation for one share class than another. Because of their characteristics and sales load structure, mutual funds generally are longer term investments. Frequent purchases and sales of mutual funds offered by a sponsor that permits exchanges without additional sales charges. PBS maintains policies and procedures that are designed to detect and prevent excessive mutual fund switching, but you should monitor your account and discuss with your financial professional any frequent mutual fund purchases and sales.

Some share classes or funds available do not charge or pay to us an upfront sales charge and pay us ongoing trails of 0.25% or



less annually ("no- load funds"). PBS makes no-load funds available only to certain customers or through certain of our programs. We may be compensated in other ways by sponsors of no-load funds, such as through revenue sharing payments. Because of the limited compensation from no-load funds, we have an incentive to limit the availability of no-load funds we offer and to recommend you invest in funds that impose sales charges and trails.

PBS also offers various mutual funds and ETFs, some of which have similar or identical investment strategies but differing fee structures. For example, a mutual fund that is designed to track an index of securities, such as the S&P 500 Index, may have higher or different types of fees than an ETF that is designed to track the same index. Whether a fund or ETF is more expensive than another fund or ETF with a similar or identical investment strategy may depend on factors such as length of holding, size of the initial investment and other factors. PBS and a financial professional may earn more compensation for one fund or ETF than another, giving PBS and the financial professional an incentive to recommend the product that pays more compensation to us.

ITEM 5 CUSTOMER REFERRALS, OTHER COMPENSATION AND OTHER CONFLICTS

Payment for Referrals

PBS does not offer programs where PBS pays professionals, such as attorneys or accountants, for referrals. A professionals become registered as representatives of PBS and share in brokerage commissions and advisory fees in connection with the referral. PBS and financial professionals may enter lead generation, marketing and/or referral arrangements with third parties and other financial intermediaries, including for the purpose of introducing new customers. The fees paid for these services can be structured in various ways, including an ongoing flat fee.

Margin

PBS does not offer its customers the ability to purchase securities on credit, also known as margin purchases. Any margin agreements will be initiated between the customer and one or more custodians. When a customer purchases securities on margin, the custodian extends a line of credit to the customer and charges interest on the margin balance. PBS has a financial incentive to encourage margin borrowing because PBS earns compensation in the form of interest, transaction charges and other fees on investments made with borrowed amounts. That financial incentive creates a conflict of interest insofar as PBS and financial professionals' benefit from your decision to borrow and incur the various fees and interest described above. If contemplating use of margin, please consult the Custodial Margin Agreement and related disclosures for additional details.

Rollovers

If a customer decides to roll assets out of a retirement plan, such as a 401(k) plan, and into an individual retirement account (IRA), we have a financial incentive to recommend that a customer invests those assets through PBS, because we will be paid on those assets, for example, through commissions, fees and/or third-party payments. A customer should be aware that such fees and commissions likely will be higher than those the customer pays through the plan, and there can be custodial and other maintenance fees. As securities held in a retirement plan are generally not transferred to an IRA, commissions and sales charges may be charged when liquidating such securities prior to the transfer, in addition to commissions and sales charges previously paid on transactions in the plan.

Account Maintenance Fees

PBS does not charge you an annual account maintenance fee. Retirement accounts custodied at Raymond James & Associates, our clearing broker- dealer, or other custodians will assess an annual fee and/or inactive accounts in their custody.

Account Transfer Fees

PBS does not charge account transfer fees as we do not custody customer assets. Accounts custodied at Raymond James & Associates, our clearing broker- dealer, or other custodians may assess an account transfer fee including fees associated with the Automated Customer Account Transfer System, commonly referred to as the ACAT fee. These fees are assessed when you initiate the transfer of your account to another broker-dealer.

Wire Transfer Fees

PBS does not charge wire transfer fees as we do not custody customer assets. Accounts custodied at Raymond James & Associates, our clearing broker- dealer, or other custodians may assess a wire transfer fee including fees associated wiring cash from your account to another account held at other firm(s) or custodian(s). The wire transfer fee will vary by account type and may be more for certain international wire transfers.

Limitations on Investment Recommendations

PBS and financial professionals offer and recommend investment products only from investment sponsors with which PBS or its custodian has entered into selling and distribution agreements. Other firms may offer products and services not available through PBS, or the same or similar investment products and services at lower cost. In addition, PBS may only offer certain products in a brokerage account, even though there is a version of the product that may be offered at a lower cost through an advisory account,



and vice versa.

The scope of products and services offered by certain financial professionals may also be more limited than what is available through other financial professionals. A financial professional's ability to offer individual products and services depends on his/her licensing, training or branch office policy restrictions. For example, a financial professional maintaining a Series 6, Series 63 and Life Insurance Agent license is limited to providing investment company securities, such as mutual funds and UITs and variable annuity contracts. A financial professional maintaining a Series 7, Series 63 and Life Insurance Agent license is able to provide solutions including all securities available for sale by a Series 6 representative as well as individual stocks, bonds, and alternative investments, among others. As another example, a financial professional may only be licensed to provide brokerage services, not advisory services, or vice versa. To provide investment advisory services, a financial professional is often required to be registered as an IAR with the state in which he/she has a place of business.

Some states may also limit product offerings within their state thus impacting a resident of that state having availability to all approved offerings by the broker dealer. The Registered Representatives must research states with limited product offerings relative to the customers resident state to find as many products as possible to review for the clients. The Registered Representatives must perform an analysis to determine which of these available products is in the best interests of the client.

You should ask your financial professional about the securities or services he/she is licensed or qualified to sell, and his/her ability to service investments that you transfer to PBS from another firm. You should also review the licenses held by your financial professional by visiting the FINRA BrokerCheck system at http://brokercheck.finra.org.

ITEM 6 FINANCIAL PROFESSIONAL COMPENSATION, FEES AND RELATED CONFLICTS

PBS generally compensates financial professionals pursuant to an independent contractor agreement, and not as employees. Described below are the compensation and other benefits that independent contractor financial professionals receive from PBS.

Cash Compensation

PBS typically pays a financial professional a percentage of the revenue he/she generates from sales of products and services. The percentage received can vary (typically between 80% to 100%) depending on his or her agreements with PBS and the investment product or service recommended and can be more or less than what he/she would receive at another brokerage firm. PBS has an obligation to supervise financial professionals and may decide to terminate a financial professional's association with PBS based on performance, a disciplinary event or other factors. The amount of revenue a financial professional generates creates a conflict of interest when considering whether to terminate a financial professional.

Other Benefits

Financial professionals are eligible to receive other benefits based on the revenue he/she generates from sales of products and services. These benefits present a conflict of interest because the financial professional has an incentive to remain a registered representative of PBS in order to maintain these benefits. These benefits include eligibility for practice management support and enhanced service support levels that confer a variety of benefits, conferences (e.g., for education, networking, training, and personal and professional development), and other non-cash compensation. Such benefits also include free, or reduced-cost marketing materials, reimbursement or credits of fees that financial professionals pay to PBS for items such as administrative services or technology, and payments that can be in the form of repayable or forgivable loans (e.g., for retention purposes or to assist a financial professional grow his/her securities practice). If PBS makes a loan to a new or existing financial professional, there is also a conflict of interest because PBS's interest in collecting on the loan affects its ability to objectively supervise the financial professional.

Fees Charged to Financial Professionals

PBS charges financial professional's various fees under its independent contractor agreement for, among other things, administrative services, insurance, certain outside business activity related supervision, technology and licensing. Depending on the situation, these fees make it more or less profitable for the financial professional to offer and recommend certain services or products over others. In certain cases, these fees are reduced based on the financial professional's overall business production or the amount of assets serviced by the financial professional, which gives the financial professional an incentive to recommend that you invest more in your account or engage in more frequent transactions.

Recruitment Compensation and Operational Assistance

If a financial professional recently became associated with PBS after working with another financial services firm, he/she may



receive compensation in the form of waiver of certain licensing fees and expenses in connection with the transition. In many cases, this transition assistance is nominal in relation to the overall revenue earned or compensation received by the financial professional at his or her prior firm. Such fee waivers are generally based on the size of the financial professional's business established at his/her prior firm, for example, a percentage of the revenue earned, or assets serviced at the prior firm, or on the size of the assets that transition to PBS. The receipt of these fee waiver may create a a conflict of interest in that the financial professional has a financial incentive to recommend that a customer open and maintain an account with PBS for advisory and/or brokerage services, and to recommend switching investment products or services where a customer's current investment options are not available through PBS, in order to receive this type of benefit.

Financial Professional's Outside Business Activities

Financial professionals are permitted to engage in certain PBS-approved business activities other than the provision of brokerage and advisory services through PBS or affiliates, and in certain cases, a financial professional receives more compensation, benefits, and non-cash compensation through the outside business than through PBS. Some financial professionals are accountants, real estate agents, insurance agents, tax preparers, or lawyers, and some financial professionals refer customers to other service providers and receive referral fees. As an example, a financial professional could sell insurance through a separate business or provide third party administration to retirement plans through a separate firm. If a financial professional provides investment services to a retirement plan as a representative of PBS and provides administration services to the plan through a separate firm, this typically means the financial professional is compensated from the plan for the two services. In addition, a financial professional may sell insurance through an insurance agency not affiliated with PBS. In those circumstances, the financial professional would be subject to the policies and procedures of the third-party insurance agency related to the sale of insurance products and would have different conflicts of interest than when acting on behalf of PBS or TAG. A financial professional may earn compensation, benefits and non-cash compensation through the third-party insurance agency and may have an incentive to recommend you purchase insurance products away from PBS or TAG. Some associated persons of Peak Brokerage Services, LLC (Glenn Wiggle, Michael Lomas and Dan Neiman) have an ownership interest in Neiman Funds Management LLC ("NFM"), which is a registered investment advisor. NFM provides investment advisory services to Neiman Large Cap Value Fund (the LCV Fund), Neiman Balanced Allocation Fund and Neiman Opportunities Fund, collectively ("Neiman Funds"). As a result of this relationship, these associated persons receive additional economic benefits in the way of either expense reimbursements or other fee sharing arrangements with NFM. The Neiman Funds may reimburse NFM for marketing and distribution expenditures related to the Fund family.

If you engage with a financial professional for services separate from PBS, you may wish to discuss with him/her any questions you have about the compensation he/she receives from the engagement. Additional information about your financial professionals outside business activities is available on FINRA's website at http://brokercheck.finra.org.

Compensation for Other Services

PBS and financial professionals can offer various types of advisory and brokerage programs, platforms, and services, and earn differing types and amounts of compensation depending on the type of service, program or platform in which you participate. This variation in compensation can incentivize a financial professional to recommend services, programs or platforms that generate more compensation for PBS and the financial professional than others. For example, if you expect to trade securities frequently in your account, a brokerage account in which you pay a commission for each transaction may generate more compensation for your financial professional that generates compensation in the form of investment advisory fees.

ITEM 7 OTHER FINANCIAL INDUSTRY AFFILIATIONS

PBS is affiliated with other financial services companies. BAM is a registered investment adviser and affiliated with PBS. PBS, BAM, and TAG are principally owned by the Peak Reps, LLC, which owns 90% or more of the firm.

Please consult the Disclosures page on PBS's <u>website</u> for the current information about related conflicts of interest. PBS posts changes on its website from time to time. PBS may not notify you when these changes are made, so you should consult the website to learn about any changes that have been made. If you are unable to access the website or require paper copies of any documents referenced here, please contact your financial professional.